
 

Page 1 of 35 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 06, 2019 

5:30 PM AT CITY HALL 

 

 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes of October 23, 2019. 

Public Comments 

Old Business 

New Business 

2. Site Plan Amendment and First Amendment to Conditional Zoning Agreement: Mills Fleet 
Farm Signage Plan at 400 W. Ridgeway Avenue 
 
Location: Southwest corner of Highway 58 and W. Ridgeway Avenue 
Applicant: Midland Atlantic Development Company, LLC, Developer; Mills Properties LLC, Tenant; 
VEREIT Real Estate L.P., property owner 
Previous discussion: None 
Recommendation: Recommend Approval 
P&Z Action: Review and make a recommendation to City Council 

Commission Updates 

Adjournment 

Reminders: 

* November 20th Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* December 4th and December 18th Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings 
* November 18th City Council Meetings 
* January 22 –Training Session - Conflict of Interest and Ex Parte Communication (Joint meeting with Board 
of Adjustment) 

  

1



 1 

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
October 23, 2019 

City Hall Council Chambers 
220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
MINUTES 

 
The Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission met in regular session on Wednesday, 
October 23, 2019 at 5:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 220 Clay Street, Cedar 
Falls, Iowa. The following Commission members were present: Adkins, Holst, Larson, 
Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux and Saul. Hartley and Wingert were absent. Karen Howard, 
Community Services Manager and Jadevsinh Atodaria, Planner I, were also present. 
 
1.) Chair Holst noted the Minutes from the October 9, 2019 regular meeting are 

presented. Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the Minutes as presented. Ms. Saul 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, 
Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux and Saul), and 0 nays.  

 
2.) The first item of business was the Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan. Chair Holst 

introduced the item and Ms. Howard noted that late correspondence was received 
from Community Main Street. She then provided background information and 
addressed some of the comments and questions from the last meeting. She discussed 
the study area and how the boundaries were created, as it was noted that it is a bigger 
area than most people would have expected. When the boundaries were set up, they 
were thinking about how to transition from downtown into the surrounding 
neighborhoods, as well as looking at the zoning districts. She also addressed 
concerns mentioned with regard to how much public outreach was done. She 
displayed a list detailing the planning process and discussed the various opportunities 
to weigh in on the plan.  

  
 Ms. Howard discussed the City Council Project priorities, which include creating a 

vision plan to manage change over time and basing the plan on broad community 
input. The Council wants to create a safe and welcoming process to explore ideas and 
to base the plan on market realities, changing demographics and diversity of issues, 
including future technology, transportation and housing needs. The idea is to build on 
success and maintain a unique sense of place while encouraging economic 
development based on the vision, as well as to establish clear and objective zoning 
standards to achieve the adopted community vision. 

 
 Ms. Howard also noted the big ideas that were brought forward by the public, which 

included improved walkability for safety, connectivity and comfort. It was also a priority 
to respect historic character, add street trees and other green space, and to re-think 
parking. Added housing options for all ages and making biking easier beyond the trails 
was also suggested. She discussed visualizing change and how to address it when it 
does occur, noting that matching the current zoning with the Community’s vision is 
important. There is also a need for a plan and a zoning code that address change 
when it occurs. The plan will help to visualize the relationship between buildings and 

2

Item 1.



 2 

the street and create the unique sense of place that is Downtown Cedar Falls. She 
cited examples from the plan to give an idea of potential proposals. Ms. Howard also 
discussed the street section of the plan, particularly the Main Street corridor. She 
noted that the plan indicates how a 4 to 3-lane conversion would help to achieve some 
of goals of the plan to provide a more comfortable space for pedestrians, add street 
trees, and on-street bike lanes. However, she noted that continued discussion and 
study and discussion would take place as the City gets into more detailed design of 
the corridor.  

 
 Ms. Howard spoke to the comments received from the Community Main Street 

requesting additional language be added to the plan to emphasize preservation and 
adaptive re-use of existing buildings. Howard indicated that staff worked with the 
consultant to identify specific places in the plan where these points could be 
emphasized. She noted that one of the “big ideas” highlighted in the plan is to “respect 
the historic character” and described the implementation strategies listed in the plan to 
help achieve this goal. The ideas include: re-use of buildings and preserving significant 
architecture, establishing zoning to respect the scale and character of the historic 
context, making sure rules enable small scale infill and redevelopment and 
management of the scale and massing of buildings to transition between Downtown 
and nearby neighborhoods.  

 
 In response to Community Main Street’s inquiry about whether the Downtown Vision 

Plan is consistent with the recent Downtown Parking Study, Howard noted that the 
Vision Plan calls for building on the recommendations of the Downtown Parking Study. 
She presented the list of long term strategies from the Parking Study, including the 
potential need to monetize on-street parking in the future to support structured parking 
(parking ramp), re-evaluation of zoning requirements for downtown residential 
developments and exploring potential public/private partnerships with developers to 
create additional public parking. These are all the same things that are noted in the 
Downtown Vision Plan.  

 
 Ms. Howard briefly showed the character map and the overarching recommendations 

of the plan. She also discussed setting the stage for new zoning and the general 
timeline for completing the zoning code work.  

 
 Carol Lilly, Community Main Street, thanked staff and the Commission for their effort 

and read a copy of the letter submitted to the Commission (attached). She noted that a 
team from their Board and from their design committee met, went through the plan and 
provided comments. They would like to ensure that the parking study and the Vision 
Plan are working together, particularly with regard to monetizing parking. She also 
noted that they would like to see emphasis on adaptive re-use. Ms. Howard stated that 
staff is in agreement. Mr. Holst asked if the comments from Community Main Street 
will be addressed in the plan. Ms. Howard indicated that the additional language 
suggested by staff in response to Community Main Street’s request could be added to 
the draft plan at the direction of the Commission. Ms. Lilly also wanted to clarify that 
preserve and respect are not the same and would like to ensure that the character is 
preserved as well as respected. Mr. Holst also asked if Community Main Street had 
any thoughts regarding how the historic homes are designated within the Overman 
Park area. Ms. Lilly noted that it was brought up because she wanted to know if the 

3

Item 1.



 3 

intent was to landmark individual properties, and noted that they there was discussion 
of local historic designation during the process of adopting the National Historic District 
designation in the downtown and there not being support at the time, so advised to be 
cautious about local historic designation.  Ms. Howard stated that the intent of the plan 
is to take care in setting up the new zoning so that new development envisioned by the 
plan is made easier, while avoiding unintended consequences for historic buildings.  

 
 Mike Hayworth, 1508 Orchard Drive, noted that he would like to the boundaries 

expanded for the single-family conversion incentive program. 
 
 Mr. Holst inquired whether the motion for approval should include the additional 

language outlined in the staff presentation. Howard stated that if the Commission 
agrees with the additional language it should be included in the motion to approve.  

 
 Mr. Leeper commended City staff for taking on this project and thanked them for their 

work.  
  
 Mr. Leeper made a motion to approve the item with the additional verbiage outlined in 

the staff presentation. Ms. Prideaux seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Prideaux and Saul), 
and 0 nays. 

 
3.) As there were no further comments, Ms. Saul made a motion to adjourn. The motion 

was approved unanimously with 7 ayes (Adkins, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, 
Prideaux and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 6:18 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Howard       Joanne Goodrich  
Community Services Manager    Administrative Clerk 
  

4

Item 1.



 4 

 

5

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 TO: Planning and Zoning Commission  

 FROM: David Sturch, Planner III 

 DATE: October 31, 2019  

 SUBJECT: First Amendment to Conditional Zoning Agreement at the southwest corner of 
Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue 

 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Site Plan Amendment and First Amendment to the Conditional Zoning 
Agreement: Mills Fleet Farm signage plan at 400 W. Ridgeway Avenue 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Midland Atlantic Development Company, LLC, Developer; Mills Properties 
LLC, Tenant; VEREIT Real Estate L.P., property owner 
 

LOCATION: 
 

Southwest corner of Highway 58 and West Ridgeway Avenue 

 
PROPOSAL 
It is proposed to amend the signage plan for the Mills Fleet Farm store at 400 W. Ridgeway 
Avenue. The Fleet Farm storm wishes to move their pylon sign to an area that located in a 
corridor preservation zone established by the Iowa DOT. This request includes a site plan 
amendment as well as an amendment to the Conditional Zoning Agreement for the 
development. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Mills Fleet Farm development at the southwest corner of Highway 58 and W. Ridgeway 
Avenue was rezoned in the fall of 2018. The rezoning included a zoning agreement that listed a 
number of conditions including, sidewalk, street, intersection and traffic improvements as well as 
setting aside an area identified on the final plat for future right of way in the event that Highway 
58 and 20 were reconstructed with a controlled access and interchange improvements. This 
corridor preservation zone was established by the Iowa DOT during the study of the Highway 58 
corridor from Greenhill Road to Highway 20. 
 
Following the rezoning, a site plan was reviewed and approved by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council. The site plan identified the location of the building, parking areas, 
access drives, landscaping and signage. The site grading started in December of 2018 when 
the plan was approved. The high point was along the southern edge and the property was 
regraded in order to level the site. The grading of the property actually depressed the store and 
parking lot below the original ground elevation along Highway 20. The pylon sign was located 6

Item 2.



near the southeast corner of the building, which is 
approximately 12 feet below the adjacent grade of 
the property. The pylon sign, only 25 feet in height, 
will not be visible to Highway 20. It should be noted 
that the height of the building next to the sign is 
approximately 25 feet. Over the past few months, 
the developer worked with city staff to come up with 
the solution to the signage issue. One solution was 
to amend the site plan for a 40 foot tall pylon sign. 
Staff encouraged the developer against this course 
of action since the ordinance would not allow a 
taller sign in this area which leads to investigating 
other options and locations for the pylon sign. Staff 
suggested moving the sign to the south to place it at the top of the embankment. The 
developers engineer reviewed this proposal and determined that the grading/slope would 
prohibit the placement of the sign and it could lead to a higher cost of installation. These 
decisions ultimately lead to the final placement of the sign, which is in Tract E at the top of the 
embankment and on level ground and 12 feet higher than the original location.  
 
ANALYSIS 
Eventually, the petitioners made a request to relocate the pylon sign to the top of the bank with 
better visibility to the adjacent highways. The sign would be located on Tract E of the final plat, 
which is 9.5 acres at the southeast corner of the 
development site. This Tract is part of the Highway 
58 corridor preservation zone established by the 
Iowa Department of Transportation. 
 
The property is located in a HWY-1 zoning district 
and the Highway 20 overlay zoning district. The 
signage standards for the overlay zoning district is 
25 feet in height and 200 square feet in area. The 
Mills Fleet Farm sign is 25 feet in height and 200 
square feet in area. The original location placed the 
bottom of the sign at an elevation of 948 feet or 12 
feet below the top of the bank along Highway 20. 
See grading plan below. 

 
 

 

 

Original Sign Location       (948’)

Building approx. 25’ tall

Proposed Sign Location       (960’)

 

7

Item 2.



The proposed location is at the top of the berm and placed at a final elevation of 960 feet which 
will provide visibility to the adjacent highways. The Iowa DOT does not object to the proposed 
location of the pylon sign with the understanding that the owner will be responsible to relocate 
the sign if the Iowa DOT would utilize Tract E for highway purposes. Therefore, an amendment 
to the original Conditional Zoning Agreement must be presented and approved by the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and City Council. Section 3b of said agreement states that no 
structure, fence, building, hard surfacing, driveways or sidewalks shall be placed in the area that 
is identified as future ROW, which in this case is Tract E of the final plat. The proposed pylon 
sign is considered a structure. The applicant submitted a letter stating that the tenant (Mills Fleet 
Farm) is responsible for moving the sign in the event that the Tract is needed for highway 
improvements.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development Department recommends approval of the Mills Fleet Farms pylon 
sign relocation and the amendment to the Conditional Zoning Agreement. 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION SUMMARY 
Vote 
11/6/2019 

 

 
xc: Applicant letter of request 
 Original sign location site plan 
 Proposed sign location and grading plan 
 Iowa DOT letter of support 
 First Amendment of Conditional Zoning Agreement 
 Original rezoning Ordinance and Conditional Zoning Agreement 
 Final Plat 

 

8

Item 2.



9

Item 2.



10

Item 2.



130'

109'

08.10.2018

E X T E R I O R  S I G N  E L E V A T I O N S

C E D A R  F A L L S ,  I A
130'

109'

11

Item 2.



DESIGN PHASE:

SHEET NUMBEREST #:

DATE:

DESIGNER:

SALES REP:

PROJ MGR:

7-AS
1-SEF

I-1I-2I-34-II-5I-6
7-I

reweS yratinaS
tnemesaE

023 esaE 51

N
O

R
D

IC
D

R
IV

E

EUNEVA YAWEGDIR TSEW
)gnivaP etercnoC(

TNEMESAE YRATINAS

FU
TU

RE
 R

/W

TOLTUO LAITNETOP
ERUTUF ROF

TNEMPOLEVED
±CA 35.1

B GNIDLIUB
FS 000,02

A GNIDLIUB
FS 000,01

C GNIDLIUB
FS 000,52

PR
OPO

SE
D 

MOUN
DI

NG

W/R EVA YAWEGDIR

NEPO
ECAPS

O
PE

N 
SP

AC
E

KCABTES RETEMIREP '02

20
' P

ER
IM

ET
ER

 S
ET

BA
CK

20
' P

ER
IM

ET
ER

 S
ET

BA
CK

LIATER
±FS 000,581

DRAY
±FS 000,27

MROTS DESOPORP
RETAW

TNEMEGANAM

NEPO
ECAPS

NEPO
ECAPS

W/R ERUTUF

11

'16 38'20'

X
X

'42

TOLTUO LAITNETOP
ERUTUF ROF

TNEMPOLEVED
±CA 77.1

30' CROSS-ACCESS EASEMENT

LEUF
RETNEC
±CA 54.2

,GNICNEF/GNIKCAR RETEMIREP
DNA NOITCES LACIPYT EES

TEEHS SIHT ,OTOHP

DESOPORP
KLAW

REMOTSUC
ROOD PU-KCIP

XXXX

X
X

X

EES ,GNIKCAR RETEMIREP
,OTOHP DNA 1 NOITCES

TEEHS SIHT

00.009

15

15

6

10

9

15

19

19

10

12

19

19

19

19

15

16

20

21

22

22

16

16

17

17

22

22

22

22

22

22

17

17

17

17

9

9

16

16

14

14

9

9

16

16

14

14

1919

20

20

6 14

20

20

20

20

20

20

11

16

11COMPACT COMPACT

247 SPACES PROVIDED  (35 COMPACT = 14.6%)

COMPACT

841 SPACES PROVIDED

20

20

20

2

2

15

15

SERCA 4915.94

132'

130'

109'

CONCEPTUAL

0.0
06.25.2018

4743-R2

A. McKinney

N. Lison

D. LaCrosse

1 07.26.18 WAM REVISE P.1, M.1 SIGN HEIGHTS, SQ. FT.; DELETE SOUTH & WEST ELE C-STORE SIGNS, ADD M.2 
2 08.10.18 WAM REVISE SITE PLAN / SIGN LOCATIONS; REVISE ELEVATIONS, SIGNAGE
3 00.00.00 XX XXXX
4 00.00.00 XX XXXX
5 00.00.00 XX XXXX
6 00.00.00 XX XXXX
7 00.00.00 XX XXXX
8 00.00.00 XX XXXX
9 00.00.00 XX XXXX

10 00.00.00 XX XXXX

Fleet Farm
Black Hawk County
Cedar Falls, IA 

SCALE: 1"=200'-0"

P.1

M.1M.2

F R E E S T A N D I N G  S I G N S

D/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED PYLON SIGNP.1

M.2

12

Item 2.



DESIGN PHASE:

SHEET NUMBEREST #:

DATE:

DESIGNER:

SALES REP:

PROJ MGR: CONCEPTUAL

5.0
06.25.2018

4743-R2

A. McKinney

N. Lison

D. LaCrosse

1 07.26.18 WAM REVISE P.1, M.1 SIGN HEIGHTS, SQ. FT.; DELETE SOUTH & WEST ELE C-STORE SIGNS, ADD M.2 
2 08.10.18 WAM REVISE SITE PLAN / SIGN LOCATIONS; REVISE ELEVATIONS, SIGNAGE
3 00.00.00 XX XXXX
4 00.00.00 XX XXXX
5 00.00.00 XX XXXX
6 00.00.00 XX XXXX
7 00.00.00 XX XXXX
8 00.00.00 XX XXXX
9 00.00.00 XX XXXX
10 00.00.00 XX XXXX

Fleet Farm
Black Hawk County
Cedar Falls, IA 

P.1 SQUARE FOOTAGE: 200
D/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED PYLON SIGN

P-1 MP BLACK, SATIN FINISH

P-3 MP TO MATCH BENJAMIN MOORE OC-65 CHANTILLY LACE
P-4 MP TO MATCH PRE-CAST WALL PANEL (T.B.D.)

P-2 MP TO MATCH PMS 165C, SATIN FINISH
V-2 3M 3630-84 TANGERINE TRANSLUCENT

COLORS/FINISHES

50 FR TALL
EMC
3 TENANTS - 50%, 30%, 20%
BIG AS EVER DONE

MAIN STORE PYLON RIGHT / LEFT ELEVATION
1/8"=1'-0"

6'-10"

4'-0"

5"

9"

27'-1 3/8"
24'-4 3/8"

20'-4"
17'-0" EMC VIEWABLE

25
'-0

"
4'-

0 1
/4"

P.1 MAIN STORE PYLON FRONT / BACK ELEVATION
1/8"=1'-0"

6'-
5"

 E
MC

6'-
0"

 V
IE

W
AB

LE

SQUARE FOOTAGE: 98

SQUARE FOOTAGE: 102

16MM PITCH FULL COLOR EMC
LED MESSAGE CENTER; 
RF COMMUNICATION

GROUND LIGHTING
FOR POLE COVER
IN LANDSCAPING
(OPTIONAL)

FACE LIT CHANNEL LETTERS P-1, P-2, V-2, V-3
MOUNTED FLUSH TO CABINET .
CABINET FINISH P-3

ALUMINUM FABRICATED POLE COVER
WITH VERTICAL FABRICATED REVEALS P-4;
SAND TEXTURE FINISH, COLOR TO MATCH
ARCHITECURAL FINISHES

STONE VENEER TO MATCH
ARCHITECTURAL FINISH

V-3 3M 3635-222 DUAL COLOR FILM

13

Item 2.



20

49.5194 ACRES

OPEN

SPACE

FUTURE OUTLOT

1.54 AC±

9

4

4

9

4

0

9

4

4

9

4

4

9

4

4

9

4

4

9

3

6

9

3

6

9

4

0

9

3

6

9

4

2

9

3

6

9
3
6

9
3
4

9
3
2

9

4

6

9

4

4

9

4

0

2
.
0
0
%

2.00%

2.00%

3.80%

3.79%

3.54%

3.47%

2
.
1

3
%

2
.
2

1
%

2.00%

1
.
5

0
%

1.50%

2.54%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.00%

2.01%

2.01%

2.57%

2.20%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.00%

2.76% 1.50%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

3.47%

1
.
5

0
%

3
.
7

6
%

3.05%

3
.
9
6
%

1.40%

2
.
0
0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2
.
0

0
%

3.00%

2
.
0

0
%

2
.
0

0
%

3.00%

2
.
0

0
%

2.50%

2
.
0

0
%

2
.
0

0
%

2.00% 4.02%

1.50% 3.79%

3.54%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2.76%

2
.
2

1
%

1
.
5

9
%

1
.
6

6
%

2
.
0

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.56%

1.56%

1.56%

3
.
8

6
%

1.55%

1
.0

0
%

1
.
3

7
%

1
.
3

7
%

1.50%

1.50% 2.40%

2.40%

2.63%

1.50%

1.50%

1.50%

1.50%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.50%

2.10%

2.61%

1.50%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2.36%

2.06%

2.36%

2.38%

2.40%

1.50%

1.50%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2.15%

1.92%

2.15%

1
.
5

0
%

2.20%

2.14%

1.50%

1.50%

2
.
0

0
%

1.50%

1.95%

2.21%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.90%

1.89%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
0
3

%
2
.
4

4
%

1
.
0
0

%

1.90%

2.02%

1.78%

2
.
0

0
%

1.50%

1
.
5

0
%

2.40%

2.70%

3.05%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2.40%

2.40%

2.40%

2.27%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2.00%

2.00%

2.00%

2.35%

2.13%

1.90%

1.72%

2

.

0

0

%

1.80%

1
.
9

7
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.90%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.60%

1.67%

2
.
9

8
%

1.50%

1
.
5
0

%

1.50%

1.54%

1.83%

2

.

0

0

%

2

.

6

0

%

1

.

0

0

%

1

.

0

0

%

2

.
0

0

%

1
.
0
0
%

2

.
0

0

%

1.97%

2.19%

1.50%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5
0
%

3
.
0
0
%

1
.
0
0
%

2.70%

1
.
0

7
%

2
.
9

9
%

1.00%

1.00%

1.00%

1.18%

9

4

6

9
4
8

9
4
8

9

4

0

9

4

4

9

3

8

1
.
0

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2
.
1

6
%

2

.

0

0

%

2
.
0
0
%

2.00%

2.00%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
3

5
%

1
.
5

0
%

1

.
0

0

%

1
.
0
0
%

1

.

2

0

%

1

.

1

4

%

1

.

0

0

%

1

.

1

0

%

1

.

8

6

%

2

.

0

0

%

1.70%

2.38%

2.76%

2.0
0%

2.30%

1.37%

1.85%

2.40%

3.05%

3.56%

1.55%

1.57%

1.50%

1.50%

0
.
5
8

%

9

3

4

T

/
D

I
K

E

=

9

3

7

.
0

0

DETENTION AND
WATER QUALITY

BASIN #3
100 YR ELEV=936.00
TOP OF DIKE=937.00

9
3
0

DRIVE #4

D
R

I
V

E
 
#
1

D
R

I
V

E
 
#
1

9
3
0

9
2
8

9
2
6

9

3

2

391B

TYPE C

83C

TYPE C

83B

TYPE C

 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C

 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C
 
C

C

3
.
0

3
%

2
.
8

5
%

1
.
4
6

%

1.5
0%

0
.
5
0

%

1.10%

1

.

0

2

%

1

.

0

2

%

2
.
2

7
%

2
.
2

7
%

0
.
5
0
%

1.66% 1.50%

1.70%

1
.
4

6
%

1
.
5

0
%

2
.
2

8
%

2.60%1.50%

2.00%

2.30%

2
.0

0
%

2.03%

3
.
0

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2

.
0

0

%

2
.
8

9
%

2
.
3
2
%

1
.
4

7
%

1
.
6

0
%

1
.
4
7

%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
7
0

%

1
.
5
0
%

2

.

0

1

%

1
.
0

0
%

1
.
0

0
%

2.27%

2
.
7

7
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

2.00%

2
.
0

0
%

1
.
5

0
%

1
.
2

3
%

1
.
5

0
%

1.18%

1
.
6

0
%

1.97%

2
.
0

0
%

2
.
0
0
%

1
.
0

0
%

1.93%

2
.
8
3
%

9

4

6

9

4

4

9

3

8

9

4

4

9

4

2

9

4

0

9
4
8

9

4

6

9

4

4

9

4

2

9

4

6

9

4

8

9

5

0

9

5

2

9

5

4

9

5

8

9

4

2

9

4

6

9

4

8

9

5

0

952

9

4

8

9

4

6

9

4

0

9

3

8

9

3

6

9

3

2

D

R

I

V

E

 

#

2

D
R

I
V

E
 
#
1

E
.
S

.
R

.

E

.

S

.

R

.

E

.

S

.

R

.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E

.

S

.

R

.

E

.

S

.

R

.

E

.

S

.

R

.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E.S.R.

E

.

S

.

R

.

E
.
S

.
R

.

83C

TYPE C

83B

TYPE C

83C

TYPE C

DETENTION

EASEMENT

DETENTION

EASEMENT

DETENTION

EASEMENT

RESTROOM

9

5

6

9

6

0

9

4

0

3
.
0
3

%

DUMPSTER

1.50%

1.50%

2
.
0

0
%

3.80%

1
.
9

5
%

1
.
9

5
%

2.50% 4.02%

0.50%

0.50%

9

3

8

9

3

6

9

3

2

9

2

8

9

2

4

9

3

4

9

3

0

9

2

6

9

5

6

9

4

6

9

4

0

9

3

8

9

3

6

9

3

4

9

3

2

9

4

0

9

2

8
9

3

0

9

3

2

9

3

4

9

3

6

9

3

8

9

4

0

9

4

6

9

4

8

9

5

0

9
5
2

9

5

4

9

4

2

9

4

2

9

5

4

9

4

2

9

4

4

9

4

8

9

5

2

9

5

4

9

5

0

9

4

6

9

5

6

9

5

8

9

6

0

9

6

0

9

5

2

9

4

8

9

5

0

9

5

8

3

8

.
7

6

'

8

9

.

5

7

'

PROPOSED

PYLON SIGN

APPROVED

PYLON SIGN

w
w

w
.
b

a
y
e

r
b

e
c
k
e

r
.
c
o

m

M
a

s
o

n
,
 
O

H
 
4

5
0

4
0

 
-
 
5

1
3

.
3

3
6

.
6

6
0

0

6
9

0
0

 
T

y
l
e

r
s
v
i
l
l
e

 
R

o
a

d
,
 
S

u
i
t
e

 
A

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

SCALE: 1" =

0

Basis of Bearing:

40 60

40'

NAD 1983 (2011) iaRCS zone 5

H
E

N
R

Y
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
B

L
A

C
K

 H
A

W
K

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L

S
C

E
D

A
R

 F
A

L
L

S
, I

O
W

A

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 E

R
O

S
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 P
L

A
N

08-05-19

C5.2

GJK

I
t
e

m
R

e
v
i
s
i
o

n
 
D

e
s
c
r
i
p

t
i
o

n
D

a
t
e

D
r
w

n
:

C
h

k
:

P
l
o

t
 
t
i
m

e
:
 
 
O

c
t
 
2

1
,
 
2

0
1

9
 
-
 
2

:
3

6
p

m

D
r
a

w
i
n

g
 
n

a
m

e
:
 
J
:
\
2

0
1

7
\
1

7
-
0

3
3

5
\
C

V
\
D

W
G

\
1

7
-
0

3
3

5
 
C

D
.
d

w
g

 
-
 
L

a
y
o

u
t
 
T

a
b

:
 
G

r
a

d
i
n

g
 
P

l
a

n
s

T
H

I
S

 
D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 
A

N
D

 
A

L
L

 
R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

,
 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

,
 
A

N
D

 
E

L
E

C
T

R
O

N
I
C

 
M

E
D

I
A

 
P

R
E

P
A

R
E

D
 
O

R
 
F

U
R

N
I
S

H
E

D
 
B

Y
 
B

A
Y

E
R

 
B

E
C

K
E

R
 
(
B

B
)
,
 
A

R
E

 
I
N

S
T

R
U

M
E

N
T

S
 
O

F
 
B

B
'
S

 
P

R
O

F
E

S
S

I
O

N
A

L
 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
,
 
A

N
D

 
I
S

 
T

H
E

 
E

X
C

L
U

S
I
V

E
 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

B
.
 
N

O
 
D

I
S

C
L

O
S

U
R

E
,
 
U

S
E

,
 
R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

I
O

N
,
 
O

R
 
D

U
P

L
I
C

A
T

I
O

N
 
I
N

 
W

H
O

L
E

,
 
O

R
 
I
N

 
P

A
R

T
,
 
M

A
Y

 
B

E
 
M

A
D

E
 
W

I
T

H
O

U
T

 
W

R
I
T

T
E

N
 
P

E
R

M
I
S

S
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
B

B
,
 
A

N
D

 
I
S

 
D

O
N

E
 
S

O
 
A

T
 
U

S
E

R
'
S

 
S

O
L

E
 
R

I
S

K
.
 
C

O
P

Y
R

I
G

H
T

 
-
 
A

L
L

 
R

I
G

H
T

S
 
R

E
S

E
R

V
E

D
.

17-0335 CD

Issue Date:

Checked By:

Drawn by:

Drawing:

Sheet:

LEGEND

INLET PROTECTION

SEEDING & MULCHING

SILT FENCE OR MULCH BERM

1
R

E
V

I
S

E
 
P

E
R

 
C

I
T

Y
 
C

O
M

M
E

N
T

G
J
K

1
0
-
2
1
-
1
9

14

Item 2.



15

Item 2.



12604471–2 

 -1- 
 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONDITIONAL ZONING AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONDITIONAL ZONING AGREEMENT (this 

“Amendment”) is made as of      , 20   (the “Effective Date”), by 

and between Midland Atlantic Development Company, LLC, a Ohio limited liability company 

(“Applicant”), CITY OF CEDAR FALLS (“City”), Mills Properties LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company (“Tenant”) and VEREIT Real Estate L.P. (property owner). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Applicant and City are parties to that certain Conditional Zoning Agreement 

dated September 25, 2018 (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which City Agreements certain 

property known as the “Premises” (as more particularly defined in the Agreement) which such 

property is located in Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; and 

WHEREAS, Applicant and City desire to modify and amend certain terms and conditions 

of the Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Applicant 

and City, intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows: 

1. Capitalized Terms.  All terms used in this First Amendment with an initial capital letter 

which are not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to such terms in the 

Agreement. 

2. Modification to the Area Shown as Future R/W.  Applicant, as developer, with the 

consent of City, agree to hereby modify the Agreement to permit the P.1 Pylon sign to be 

installed in the area designated as Future R/W in the location as shown on Exhibit A until 

such time as the Iowa DOT acquires the land for Future R/W.  Fleet Farm (“Tenant”) 

hereby agrees to pay for any costs associated with relocating the P.1 Pylon sign in the 

future.  Iowa DOT has agreed to permit such relocation by way of letter dated September 

27, 2019 attached hereto as Exhibit B.   

3. Agreement in Full Force and Effect.  The Agreement, as hereby amended, is hereby 

ratified, confirmed and continued in all respects, and all covenants, terms and conditions 

of the Agreement, as hereby amended, are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

4. Applicable Law.  This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the internal laws of the state in which the Premises are located, without regard to 

principles of conflicts of law. 

5. Transferees, Successors and Assigns.  This Amendment shall inure to the benefit of and 

shall be binding upon Applicant, City, Tenant and their respective successors and assigns. 

16

Item 2.



12604471–2 

 -2- 
 

6. Execution Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts 

(including copies sent to a party by email in portable document format (pdf)), each of 

which shall be deemed an original and together which shall constitute one and the same 

instrument. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK. SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW.] 

 

17

Item 2.



 

Signature Page for Applicant to the First Amendment to Agreement 
Fleet Farm (Cedar Falls) 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Applicant and City have entered into this First Amendment 

as of the Effective Date. 

APPLICANT: 

 

MIDLAND ATLANTIC DEVELOPMENT CO. 

LLC,  

a, Ohio limited liability Company 

 

 

By:  

 

  

John Silverman, Executive Manager 

 

 

Corporate Acknowledgement: 

 

STATE OF __________  ) 

  ) ss: 

COUNTY OF _________________ ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of __________________, 20__ 

by John Silverman as Executive Manager of Midland Atlantic Development Company, L.L.C. 

 

   _________________________________________ 

 Notary Public in and for said County and State 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

18

Item 2.



 

Signature Page for City to the First Amendment to Agreement 
Fleet Farm (Cedar Falls) 

 

 

MILLS PROPERTIES LLC,  

a Delaware limited liability company 

 

 

By  

  

Tom Carrico, VP of Real Estate 

 

 

Corporate Acknowledgement: 

 

STATE OF __________ ) 

  ) ss: 

COUNTY OF _________________ ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of __________________, 20__ 

by Tom Carrico, VP of Real Estate of Mills Properties, L.L.C. 

 

   _________________________________________ 

 Notary Public in and for said County and State 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

19

Item 2.



 

Signature Page for Tenant to the First Amendment to Agreement 
Fleet Farm (Cedar Falls) 

 

 

VEREIT Real Estate, L.P.  

 

 

 

By  

  

 

 

 

Corporate Acknowledgement: 

 

STATE OF __________ ) 

  ) ss: 

COUNTY OF _________________ ) 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ______ day of __________________, 20__ 

by   ,      of VEREIT Real Estate, L.P. 

 

   _________________________________________ 

 Notary Public in and for said County and State 

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20

Item 2.



 

Signature Page for Tenant to the First Amendment to Agreement 
Fleet Farm (Cedar Falls) 

 

CITY:  

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa  

 

 

 

By:  

 

  

Jim Brown, Mayor 

 

Attest:  

 

   

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

City Of Cedar Falls Acknowledgement: 

 

STATE OF IOWA  ) 

  ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _______________, 20__ by 

James P. Brown as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar Falls. 

 

    

  Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

21

Item 2.



12604471–2 

 

Exhibit A 

EXHIBIT A 

  

P.1

 

22

Item 2.



 

Signature Page for Tenant to the First Amendment to Agreement 
Fleet Farm (Cedar Falls) 

 

EXHIBIT B 

 

 

23

Item 2.



24

Item 2.



25

Item 2.



26

Item 2.



27

Item 2.



28

Item 2.



29

Item 2.



30

Item 2.



31

Item 2.



32

Item 2.



33

Item 2.



34

Item 2.



35

Item 2.


	Top
	1. P&Z Minutes from October 23 meeting
	10-23-2019 P and Z Minutes.draft

	2. Site Plan Amendment and First Amendment to Conditional Zoning Agreement: Mills Fleet Farm Signage Plan at 400 W. Ridgeway Avenue
	1 PZ Memo Mills sign relocation 10-30-19
	2 VEREIT_Fleet Farm - Pylon Sign Relocation Request Letter (Updated) 10.30.19)
	3 VEREIT_Fleet Farm - Original Pylon Sign Location as of 8.10.18
	4 VEREIT_Fleet Farm - Pylon Sign Relocation Drawing (Grading) - Updated)
	5 VEREIT Fleet Farm - Pylon Sign Relocation IDOT Letter of Support)
	6 First Amendment to Conditional Zoning Agreement 10-30-19
	7 Ord. 2933 and Conditional Zoning Agreement - Signed and Executed
	8 Final Plat

	Bottom

